ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWMM TTEE
January 30, 2013
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Bert Stedman
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BI LL NO 17
"An Act extending the special education service agency; and
providing for an effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 17

SHORT TITLE: EXTEND SPECI AL EDUCATI ON SERVI CE AGENCY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEVENS

01/ 16/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (S) EDC, FIN

01/ 23/ 13 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
01/ 23/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 23/ 13 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

01/ 30/ 13 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

PATRI CK PI LLAI, Executive Director

Speci al Education Service Agency

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinony for SB 17.

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director

School Fi nance
Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnment

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- January 30, 2013



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinony for the
Speci al Education Service Agency.

ERI C GEBHART, Director

Board of Directors

Speci al Education Service Agency

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinony for SB 17.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:03: 14 AM

CHAIR GARY STEVENS <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Gardner, Vice Chair Dunleavy, and
Chair Stevens.

SB 17- EXTEND SPECI AL EDUCATI ON SERVI CE AGENCY

CHAI R STEVENS announced the consideration of SB 17 and noted
that the commttee substitute (CS) that was on nenbers' desks
coul d be adopted at the next neeting. The intention today was to
further discuss the bill.

8: 03: 45 AM

PATRI CK PILLAI, Executive Director, Special Education Service
Agency (SESA), said SESA's mssion statenent captured the
| egislative intent of services that SESA was tasked to provide.
He said SESA tasks were as foll ows:

A Itinerant outreach services to students with Low
| nci dence Disabilities (LID). LID is defined as
disability occurring in less than one percent of
the total statewi de K-12 enroll nent.

B. Instructional support and training of special
education personnel and primarily that is the
t eachers, paraprofessionals, and parents.

C. Services appropriate to special education and
that include creation of, for exanple, E-Mdules
of the 13 categories of special education for the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent
(DEED) websi te.

MR. PILLAlI said SESA's legislative intent was connected to
federal law. He explained that according to the session

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -2- January 30, 2013



| aws of Alaska, the Al aska Legislature created SESA to do
t he foll ow ng:

1. Make nore special education and related services
avai l able to students with LID.

2. Encour age communi ties of practice bet ween
districts W th respect to l ow incidence
disabilities.

3. Make available a qualified specialist to school
districts to ensure free and appropriate

educati on to students W th l ow incidence
disabilities without regard to their location in
the state.

MR. PILLAI said SESA funding was as foll ows:

e Flat-funded for the past 14 years.
* Not |linked to Base Student Allocation (BSA).

* Has not received funding increases received by
school districts.

He said SESA was funded through |egislative appropriation and
followed the legislative process in seeking an increase to funding.
He noted that SESA was currently seeking an increase in funding.

He said the Division of Legislative Audit (DLA) Report calculated the
f ol | owi ng:

e 36 percent depreciation of SESA's funding due to
inmpact of inflation. The adjustnent addresses
inflation from 1998 to 2013 and does not factor
inflation from 2014 to 2021.

 Retention of staff has been severely inpacted.
Specialists have rolled over contracts three
times without increases.

« Staff has 70 percent dependent-coverage nedical
i nsurance, but 30 percent out-of-pocket for a
famly of four was about $800, which makes it
very difficult to recruit.

He addressed the recomendation from DLA relating to increased
SESA funding. He said current funding was $15.75 [for each
student based upon Average Daily nenbership (ADM] and an
increase would address inflation's inpact for the past 14 years.
He stated that the recommended funding was $21.50 [per student],

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- January 30, 2013



an increase of $5.67. He said the reasons for SESA s funding
i ncrease were as foll ows:

e To fulfill the intent of the legislature and the
mandat e of 2004 i dea.

 To provide conpetitive salaries to attract and
retain qualified specialists.

 To <continue providing qualified services for
children with LID

 To maintain a consistent infrastructure despite
short termor discontinued grant funding cycles.

8. 08: 08 AM
MR. PILLAI addressed SESA s fundi ng based upon ADM versus SESA' s
LI D student count as foll ows:

« ADM enroll nent has declined between 2001 and 2013
whi ch i nmpact ed SESA fundi ng.

e LID student counts have increased between 2001
and 2013.

* lIncreasing LI D students meant i ncreased
expectations of service from school districts.
Wen conmbined wth a shortage of speci al
education teachers and many new special education
directors to the state, we have a greater demand
for gui dance, support, and trai ning.

SENATOR GARDNER addressed the decrease in ADM students and the
increase in LID students. She asked if SESA had shifted its
services and were | ess LID students being served.

MR, PILLAI replied that SESA was receiving a greater nunber of
referrals from school districts. He noted that part of the
reason was due to the rising nunbers of students with autism and
multiple disabilities. He said SESA served 180 LID students in
2001 and 266 LID students in 2013.

He reviewed the inpact from declining ADM on SESA's LID funding
from 2004 to 2013 as foll ows:

e SESA | ost $212, 847 bet ween 2004 and 2013.

» SESA experienced inflation while being flat-
funded.

He said SESA had to do nore with |ess funding due to ADM fl uctuations
and LI D student popul ation increases.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- January 30, 2013



MR. PILLAI addressed SESA's flat-funding in conparison to the
Consuner Price Index (CPlI) and BSA increases as foll ow ngs:

e CPlI increased 36 percent from 2000 to 2012.
* BSA increased 45 percent from 2000 to 2012.

8:10: 57 AM
He said actual SESA funding was declining while LID student
counts continued to increase.

He addressed LID cost of operations versus fund balances and
grant expenditures. He said SESA lost two grants in 2011 and
2012: Early Intervention for Vision (EIV) Gant and the Early
Intervention for Hearing Inpairnment (EIH) Gant. He explained
that SESA held the EIV G ant for 20 years and the EIH Gant for
eight years. He said the Al aska Autism Resource Center (AARQC
lost $84,000 in funding and SESA <closed their Fairbanks
satellite office in response. He noted that AARC s funding cut
occurred md-year while services were promsed to schoo
districts. He said SESA's Board of Directors decided not to cut
back the prom sed services and noted that SESA absorbed an
overage of $15,000 in costs.

He sai d under-spending and reducing specialists to create a fund
bal ance was a doubl e-edged sword. He said SESA was unable to
neet district demands for service and their SESA recruit
speci al i sts burn-out.

8:13: 09 AM
SENATOR GARDNER asked what caused the loss of md-year autism
f undi ng.

MR. PILLAI answered that the Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS) had anticipated federal funding that did not
come in. He noted that AARC received different revenue streans
fromthe Mental Health Trust, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnment (DEED), and DHSS.

He addressed SESA's challenge wth operations planning and
grants applications. He explained that SESA planned operations
after their initial grant subm ssion and actual awards were
typically less than the initial request. He said the process was
a noving target in ternms of issuing contracts prior to know ng
what the grant awards were and added funding would allow SESA to
absorb the grant disparity.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -5- January 30, 2013



MR. PILLAI said adequate funding would allow SESA to neet
legislative intent for a free and appropriate public education
to LID students. He explained that the current funding structure
was insufficient in order to provide school districts wth
requested LID services. He noted that recruiting was adversely
i npacted by the programs sunset uncertainty and its inability
to offer conpetitive health care packages to specialists. He
said quality applicants were lost to the Anchorage School
District (ASD) due to their ability to offer salaries that were
15 percent higher with full health coverage.

8:16:52 AM
He said the inpact of continued under-funding to teachers, aides
and parents was as foll ows:

1. Reduced ability to promote evidenced Dbased

practices.
2. Fewer on-site visits to provi de targeted
i nterventi ons, especially with t he LI D

popul ati on.

3. Shorter visits to maximze travel dollars to
i nclude nore sites.

4. Less tine for classroom observation and program
enhancenent .

5. Loss of guidance to new special educati on
teachers and to classroom teachers encountering
uni que disabilities.

6. Loss of child specific educational intervention
strategies nodeled on-site to teachers. For many
of the teacher aides and paraprofessionals
without formal, college, or graduate education,
the best way of showing them how to work with a
child is to denonstrate onsite. Just l|ecturing or
providing reports did not help very nuch.

7. Reduced ability to recruit and retain quality
speci al i sts.

He said not reauthorizing or under-funding SESA would renbve a
state resource in providing services for LID students.

8:19: 10 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if SESA was unique to Alaska or an
extension of a national or international program

MR, PILLAI answered that each state had an organi zation simlar
to SESA. He said SESA was responsible for the professional

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- January 30, 2013



devel opnent and training of special education teachers and
par apr of essi onal s.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what states were simlar to Al aska's SESA
program

MR. PILLAI responded that nobst states had a rural conponent in
terms of training teachers and paraprofessionals. He said Hawaii
was simlar to Alaska in terns of plane and boat travel.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if there were Al aska schools wthout
special education capabilities and an individual that was
prof essional ly trained.

8:22: 09 AM

MR. PILLAI responded that every site had a special education
teacher. He explained that many rural special education teachers
and aides l|acked the skill-set necessary to provide a wde
spectrum of onsite assistance to LID students. He noted that
school districts that |acked the funds to train their special
education teachers brought SESA in for LID training and
certification assistance.

8:24: 18 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS asked to confirm that SESA served 260 LID
students in 2013.

MR PILLAI answered correct.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about LID student distribution and the
nunber of LID groups that were served at the sane | ocation

MR. PILLAI replied that [LID student] distribution varied from
site to site. He noted that SESA was created to initially serve
what was called the Rural Attendance Areas. He said since the
inception of SESA, mmjor areas were also being served. He
di sclosed that SESA recently trained 269 paraprofessionals in
the MATSU School District. He said on the other end of the
school spectrum was the Bering Straits School D strict which
required SESA' s [individual LID student] assistance due to their
| arge geographic area. He addressed the Petersburg School
District that had a |arge nunber of children wth autism and
SESA responded by training the entire [special education] staff
rather than providing itinerant services to each LID student. He
summari zed that LID student grouping could fluctuate fromone to
twenty in a particular district. He noted that LID student

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- January 30, 2013



groupi ng was dependent on a school district's isolation and
si ze.

8:26:12 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS addressed technology and the ability to provide
di stance training wthout having to travel to a location. He
asked if SESA considered electronically delivering LID student
servi ces.

MR. PILLAI responded that there was definitely a place for
technology and SESA was noving in the direction of distance
education. He said SESA used video teleconferencing and SKYPE
He explained that SESA services were dependent on student
disability levels. He noted that sonme students mght not
initially be able to use technology, but could transition to
technol ogy use at a l|later date.

8: 30: 56 AM

SENATOR HUGG NS addressed the SESA report on geographical
distribution of LID students served. He noted that SESA served
four LID students in Anchorage versus 19 LID students in
Ket chi kan. He asked why there was such a disparity when a | arger
[ popul ati on base] received | ess SESA assi st ance.

MR. PILLAI replied that ASD had their own personnel to handle
speci al education needs. He noted that ASD did not have the
deaf-blind expertise required for four LSD students and SESA
assigned a specialist to provide assistance. He pointed out that
the 269 paraprofessionals trained in the MATSU School District
woul d be reported as training and not as itinerant services.

SENATOR HUGA NS responded that he did not understand M.
Pillai's explanation when five tinmes as nmany students were
served in Anchorage versus Ketchikan wth both school districts
receiving the same BSA. He explained that he was not picking on
Ket chi kan, but he asked why there was a nmajor SESA disparity
bet ween Anchorage and Ket chi kan.

MR, PILLAI replied that ASC had a wder range of special
education specialists while Ketchikan did not.

8:33:49 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked to verify that SESA provided services for
t eachers and par apr of essi onal s.

MR. PILLAI answered yes.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- January 30, 2013



SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if SESA ever trained and worked wth
parents.

MR. PILLAI answered yes. He said parents were brought in during
the training and the LID strategies were transferred between the
school and the hone.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if there was anything in statute or
SESA's m ssion that would prevent direct parental training.

MR. PILLAI responded that he did not think so. He said the
statute tal ked about i tinerant servi ces, pr of essi ona
devel opnent, professional training, and other services as
appropriate. He noted that a parent was always part of the
itinerant training team and he did not see anything that would
prevent SESA fromtraining the parent directly.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY described an exanmple of a child in a public
school that had to be taken out of school but still required
[ speci al education] services. He asked if SESA would be able to
work with the parent noted in his exanple.

MR. PILLAI stated that he thought SESA would be able to work
with the parent. He said SESA would be able to provide parenta

training with adequate funding and SESA Board of Directors

approval. He noted that there was nothing in the statute that
prevented SESA fromdirectly training parents.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked what state would have a nodel program
simlar to SESA

MR. PILLAlI replied that Hawaii does. He explained that Hawaii
extended services to the Marshall Islands. He said Vernont was
anot her state that had a programsimlar to SESA

8:36: 10 AM

SENATOR GARDNER addressed the |inkage between the availability
of qualified special education teachers and the need for SESA
services. She noted that Alaska changed its statutes to allow
teachers to take their special education certification off of
their license so that they could not be transferred to a speci al

education classroom that they did not want. She asked if schoo

districts were generally able to hire as nmany special education
teachers as they required and if SESA assistance would di mnish
if the trained special education teachers' pool was increased at
school districts.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- January 30, 2013



MR. PILLAI answered that there was a national shortage of
special education teachers and noted that Alaska had many
unfilled special education positions. He nentioned that sone
teachers did not show a special education endorsement on their
teaching certificate to avoid stress, paperwrk denmands, and
first time disability encounters. He said there was a recent
survey that showed 78 percent of Alaska's special education
teachers thought they were not adequately prepared due to the
vast demands of the field. He explained that Al aska had the
wai ver program that allowed general education teachers to enter
speci al education after taking sonme course work and there was a
demand for SESA to provide training.

8:39:43 AM
SENATOR GARDNER asked what percentage of students served by SESA
recei ved hi gh school dipl onas.

MR. PILLAl replied that 68 percent of SESA' s caseload was
intensive. He said it was hard to guess an exact nunber due to
the individual disabilities of each student.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if SESA ever had a direct relationship
with a student's [Individual Learning Plan] (ILP).

MR. PILLAI answered no. He noted that the EIV and EIH grants
had allowed SESA specialists to provide direct services to
el evate the skill |evel of the parent and support the onsite ILP
provi der.

CHAI R STEVENS asked that the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opment (DEED) cone forward and testify. He said the |ines
drawn between SESA, DEED, and the school districts were vague to
him He asked what would happen if SESA was to sunset and the
inpact it would have on school districts and DEED. He stated
that SESA' s funding was channeled through DEED with limtations
on strictly passing the funds al ong.

8:43: 15 AM

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director, School Finance, Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, responded that DEED supported
SESA. She said SESA provided a statew de capacity to step in and

fill the gaps when services were needed. She referenced M.
Pillai's point that services were required on an "as needed"
basis and SESA had the specialists onboard to fill in the needs.

She noted that M. Pillai referenced efficiencies in that not
every district was going to have every specialist needed from
one year to the next. She said smaller districts were able to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 10- January 30, 2013



reach out to SESA and ask for some special services to help them
with their cohort of students for a particular year. She stated
that DEED would not known who would fill the void if SESA was
not there to send specialists to a district that was servicing
their first LID student in five years.

8:45: 24 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked why SESA was not part of DEED. He
addressed DEED s approach on handling supplenentary-prograns
beyond SESA.

M5. NUDELMAN answered that there could be various DEED di agrans
of where to place supplenentary-services. She stated that she
did not know how SESA was split between HSS and DEED. She
expl ained that SESA was a |link to a set of services and DEED had
the link to the school districts. She said it nmade sense to her
that DEED had sone oversight and interaction with SESA. She
expl ai ned that SESA' s funding was derived through the education
budget. She noted that funding could be done differently, but
the current system was working in the way that it was neant to
have DEED provide funding out to SESA. She said DEED revi ewed
SESA' s budget and annual audit. She noted that DEED s Director
of Special Education was a nenber of SESA s oversight conmttee.

8:48: 02 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS stated that funding variables and capability
demands was addressed in the past. He noted that Juneau's school
district had the highest per capita requirenent for children's
services. He pointed out that Juneau only had three people that
were having assistance from SESA and asked what allowed Juneau
to reduce their demand.

M5. NUDELMAN said SESA's mssion was nore towards serving
smaller communities without a special education specialist that
a larger conmmunity would have. She noted that a school district
may not have seen a specific disability for five years and SESA
woul d be able to provide specialist assistance to the existing
speci al education teacher. She said Juneau' s popul ation all owed
for econom es of scale and the school district retained specia

education teachers that could address LID students with a w der
range of disabilities.

8: 50: 45 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS addressed the disparities between Ketchi kan and
Juneau. He asked how Ketchi kan could have a demand from SESA for
19 students and Juneau had only a demand for three students.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- January 30, 2013



M5. NUDELMAN replied that SESA's expectation was to serve
comunities wth snaller enrol |l ments that did not have
specialists. She said given SESA's small comunity nodel, it was
not surprising that SESA did not serve as many students in
| arger communiti es.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the committee would be able to receive
information on the nunber of special education teachers and
students served in Juneau and Ketchi kan.

8:53: 03 AM

CHAIR STEVENS inquired how school districts decided on the
nunber of special education teachers to hire and budget for. He
said if he were a superintendent, consideration would be given
for additional SESA support when assistance does not inpact a
district's budget. He asked if SESA charged a district for their
servi ces.

M5. NUDELMAN answered that SESA s services were not charged back
to the districts. She said the districts used their funding for
hiring special education teachers and one-on-one aides. She said
with unique LID students, SESA would be called in to provide
addi ti onal support and training.

8:55: 27 AM

CHAI R STEVENS pointed out the disparity between SESA services
provided to Ketchikan versus comunities of simlar size. He
addressed the conpensation difference between special education
teachers in school districts and SESA specialists. He asked if
nore was spent on special education teachers in districts or at
SESA.

MR.  PILLAI answered that |ess was spent on SESA specialists
because school district enployees received full nedical benefits
and salary increases. He said SESA recruited specialists wth
extended experience in specific areas and it was inperative that
t he specialists knew nore than the classroomteachers.

8:57.56 AM

CHAI R STEVENS addressed the proposed increase in SESA funding
from $15.75 to $21.50. He asked if SESA's goal was to be nore
conpetitive and to bring the conpensation for SESA teachers up
to the school districts' |evel

MR. PILLAI answered yes. He said the two main ones were salary

i ncreases and benefit coverage. He said a funding increase would
make it equitable and SESA would be viewed as an organization

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- January 30, 2013



that specialists could stay with for a long tinme. He pointed out
that it was not fair that tinme-of-enploynment and unused sick
days were not recognized when SESA enployees were hired by
school districts.

8:59: 37 AM

CHAI R STEVENS stated that DEED could oversee SESA in different
ways, but the sane goals would have to be acconplished. He said
the current system worked and it my be best for DEED to
continue doing the job they were doing.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that Chair Stevens' statenment was a
r easonabl e concl usi on.

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that SESA's staff should be considered
to be "super special -education qualified" people.

MR. PILLAlI replied correct. He said one of the greatest benefits
that SESA specialists had was their interaction and exposure to
mul ti ple classroons and schools. He noted that interacting with
parents was also a source of acquiring know edge. He expl ai ned
that SESA specialists share their acquired know edge with other
speci al education teachers. He said one of the legislature's
goals was to create cooperation in special education between
districts.

9:02: 39 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if SESA had staff nenbers that were
retiree rehires. He addressed the possibilities of |[|everaging
t eacher-nentor rel ationshi ps.

MR. PILLAI answered that SESA had "burnt their fingers" doing
some retiree rehires and his response was not intended to be a
bl anket statenent. He noted that SESA specialists had a high
degree of travel, slept on floors, and traveled in very cold
conditions. He said new hires could burnout quickly if they did
not enjoy what they were doing. He explained that due to SESA' s
flat-funding, there were two nmain groups of applicants: new
graduates and retirees who wanted to see Alaska. He said the new
graduates did not have the experience to know nore than the
speci al education teachers they were neant to assist. He said
the out-of-state retirees had great resunes, but sone started in
August and checked out in January to |leave at the end of the
year .

9:05:10 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 13- January 30, 2013



ERIC GEBHART, Director, Board of Directors, Special Education
Service Agency, addressed the distribution of SESA specialist
t hroughout the state. He said sending a SESA specialist to a
particul ar school district was based upon the conparison between
the in-place experts and the need that was in-place. He noted
that a district's cadre of special education teachers changed
and the need for SESA assistance changed. He expl ained that SESA
assi stance was based upon a district's special education staff's
expertise and not on the nunber of LID students.

9: 09: 03 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the demands from hone schooling in
an area like MATSU and how to get in touch with SESA for
services. He noted that he was a hone school parent and there
were a bunch of them He said disabled students were also at
home school s.

MR. GEBHART replied that a disabled hone school student would
have to be affiliated wth a statew de program

SENATOR HUGAE NS asked how many honme school students and parents
were receiving SESA services.

MR. CGEBHART answered that he did know.
MR. PILLAl replied that he did not know, but was aware of
children who were nedically fragile at hone. He said he was not

aware of requests from hone school parents for SESA services.

MR. GEBHART addressed SESA sal aries and contracts. He said every

school district, as well as SESA, negotiated their own
i ndi vidual contracts. He noted that not all of the districts
provided 100 percent heal thcare coverage. He said the

Associ ation of Alaska School Boards (AASB) conducted an annua

salary survey that every district received and the survey was
available to the legislature to review He explained that SESA
was based out of Anchorage and ASD was used as the best
compari son

9:12:11 AM

CHAIR  STEVENS asked to verify t hat SESA' s [ enpl oyee
conpensation] was not quite conpetitive and their teachers were
not receiving the sane benefit package that special education
teachers were receiving in school districts. He explained that
the commttee should |look at funding to allow SESA to be nore
conpetitive.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- January 30, 2013



MR. GEBHART replied yes, at least in Anchorage. He said he was
not famliar with every district in the state. He noted that
districts did their own negotiations and it varied from place to
pl ace.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if SESA received any reinbursenents from
school districts.

MR, GEBHART answered no. He said it was part of the statute that
SESA provided their services free to school districts.

MR. PILLAI confirmed that SESA provided their services free to
school districts.

CHAIR STEVENS said the proposed CS in the packets renoves
| anguage w thout the losing anything. [SB 17 was held in
committee.]

9:14: 26 AM

There being no further business to cone before the Senate
Education Commttee, Chair Stevens adjourned the neeting at 9:14
a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -15- January 30, 2013



